
63rd meeting — 16 April 1981 59

63rd meeting
Thursday, 16 April 1981, at 10.15 a.m.

Chairman: Mr. T. T. B. KOH (Singapore)

Organization of the future work of the Conference

1. The CHAIRMAN informed members that he had held
two meetings with the Chairmen of the five regional groups,
the Chairman of the Group of 77 and the representative of the
United States, as a result of which an agreement had been
reached on the future programme of work of the Conference.
The agreement was as follows.
2. The tenth session would be suspended on 24 April and
resumed on 3 August 1981 for a period of four weeks, until
28 August, provided that, if the Conference should so decide,
the resumed tenth session could be extended by an additional
week, until 4 September. He had been asked how the Confer-
ence would decide whether or not to extend the resumed tenth
session. He had replied that the procedure by which the
Conference would decide that question would be governed by
the rules of procedure of the Conference, also taking into
account the traditions of the Conference and the circum-
stances prevailing at the time. With regard to the programme
of work, he said that the resumed tenth session would continue
with the programme of work that had been agreed at the end
of the ninth session in August 1980.

3. With regard to the intersessional meeting of the Drafting
Committee, it had been understood that the Drafting Com-
mittee must be given sufficient time to complete its mandate,
namely, the examination of the entire draft convention. It
should therefore hold a five-week intersessional meeting,
beginning on 29 June. In order to facilitate the attendance of
experts on First Committee matters from developing
countries, the Chairman of the Drafting Committee and the
Chairman of the Group of 77 had agreed that it would be
desirable for the Drafting Committee to take up Part XI
during the last two weeks of the intersessional meeting. Thus,
the first three weeks would be devoted to the examination of
Parts XV, XVI and XVII and any others that remained
outstanding.
4. That programme of work had been fully agreed upon by
the Chairmen of the five regional groups, the Chairman of the
Group of 77 and the representative of the United States, as
well as the Chairman of the Drafting Committee. He therefore
hoped that the General Committee would agree to it without
objection.
5. Mr. BEESLEY (Canada), speaking as Chairman of the
Drafting Committee, said that one element had inadvertently



Tenth Session — General Committee

been left out of the general understanding. Since five weeks
would not be enough time for the Drafting Committee to
complete its work, it would have available to it an additional
week during the post-sessional meeting, as well as any addi-
tional time necessary.
6. The CHAIRMAN said it was, of course, granted that if
the Drafting Committee was unable to complete its mandate
during the intersessional meeting, additional time must be
allocated to it. He wished, however, to make a strong request
to the Chairman and members of the Drafting Committee that
they should do their best to complete their mandate during the
intersessional meeting.
7. Mr. ARIAS SCHREIBER (Peru) said that before he could
express agreement or disagreement with the Chairman's
proposal, he would need to have a clearer understanding of the
Chairman's remark that the decision whether or not to extend
the resumed session would be taken on the basis of the rules of
procedure, the traditions of the Conference and the circum-
stances prevailing at the time. He did not object to the
reference to the rules of procedure. However, he could not
agree to any provision that might allow for following a
procedure different from that established in the rules. The
decision whether or not to extend the resumed tenth session
was a procedural one and, accordingly, under article 39,
paragraph 3, of the rules of procedure, should be taken by a
majority of the representatives present and voting. In a con-
ference dealing with matters of international law, such as the
Conference on the law of the sea, all delegations had the
obligation to respect the established rules. The Conference
could not act in a manner contrary to its own rules merely in
order to satisfy one delegation which, paradoxically, had dis-
regarded the programme of work adopted by consensus at
Geneva.
8. The CHAIRMAN said that his statement had been very
clear. He had said that the question would be decided in
accordance with the rules of procedure of the Conference,
which, of course, took precedence, and that the traditions of
the Conference and the circumstances prevailing at the time
would also be taken into account. When the time came, the
Conference would make the appropriate decision. Naturally,
the primary consideration would be to follow the rules of
procedure.
9. Mr. ARIAS SCHREIBER (Peru) said that he could not
agree with the Chairman's formulation. In 1973 the Conference
had reached a gentleman's agreement to the effect that it
would make every effort to settle substantive questions by
consensus. The question of the extension of a session was not a
substantive one. Therefore, the only relevant consideration in
that regard was article 39, paragraph 3, of the rules of pro-
cedure. In practice, procedural decisions had been taken by
consensus, but that was because there had actually been
consensus and it had been unnecessary to vote. However, he
recalled at least one occasion when there had been no con-
sensus on a procedural question and a vote had been taken.
Certainly, if at the resumed tenth session there was consensus
regarding extension, it would not be necessary to vote, but that
outcome could not be established beforehand. Therefore he
could not agree to the Chairman's proposal, which left the
door open for the possibility of departing from the rules of
procedure of the Conference and was tantamount to amending
those rules. Under article 67, an amendment would require a
two-thirds majority. For reasons of principle, his delegation
could not consent to such a proposal. Any exception to the
rules of procedure that might be made for the benefit of one
delegation would set an undesirable precedent and would open
the door for a veto by that delegation, which had already made
a considerable effort to impose its will on the Conference. He
therefore proposed that all reference to the manner of deciding
on a possible extension of the resumed tenth session should be
deleted from the Chairman's proposal, except possibly for a
simple reference to the rules of procedure.

10. The CHAIRMAN said it appeared that the representa-
tive of Peru continued to construe his remarks in a manner not
intended by the author. It would be incorrect and wrong to
construe his remarks as implying that the question whether or
not to extend the session would be decided otherwise than in
accordance with the rules of procedure. It was incorrect and
wrong to construe his remarks as implying that there was an
intention to amend the rules of procedure in their application
to such a question. It was incorrect and wrong to construe his
remarks as meaning that some other exception to the rules of
procedure would be applicable to the question. Obviously, if
he had intended any such thing, the Chairman of the regional
group to which Peru belonged would not have consented, nor
would the Chairman of the interest group to which Peru
belonged, the Group of 77, have consented. He had merely
been stating the absolutely obvious, namely, that the decision
would be taken in accordance with the rules of procedure of
the Conference; however, as the representative of Peru knew,
the rules of procedure of any human institution must not be
applied without taking into account the relevant circumstances
prevailing at the time and also taking into account the
tradition and history of the institution.
11. He appealed to the representative of Peru not to stand in
the way of a unanimous agreement by the Chairmen of all the
five regional groups and the Chairman of the Group of 77.
12. Mr. EVENSEN (Norway) said that the Chairman's
remarks had been very clear. There was no doubt that the
question of the extension of the resumed tenth session was a
procedural one and that the rules of procedure would apply.
He had not understood the reference to tradition to mean
anything other than that when the time came to decide on the
extension, the Conference would follow its practice of
holding meetings of the regional groups and that such
meetings usually made voting superfluous. Obviously, the
circumstances prevailing at the time, such as the degree of
progress that had been made during the resumed tenth session,
would have to be taken into account. That was all he had
understood from the Chairman's proposal, to which his
delegation agreed. The practice referred to had worked well in
the past and had not led to any change in the rules of
procedure.
13. Mr. CALERO RODRIGUES (Brazil) said he shared the
view of the representative of Peru that the question of
extension of the session was a procedural one. However, in the
light of the explanation given by the Chairman, he agreed with
the representative of Norway. There was no doubt that the
matter would ultimately be decided according to the rules of
procedure. It was his understanding that the Chairman's
additions to the proposal meant that the Conference should
bear in mind its usual practice—in other words, that it should
try to reach consensus first and also take into account the
circumstances prevailing at the time. Although the Chairman's
additions were not really necessary, they were not harmful. He
hoped that the representative of Peru would agree with that
interpretation.
14. Mr. MWANANG'ONZE (Zambia) asked the Chairman
to clarify whether the resumed tenth session would be a
negotiating session, that is to say, one at which all outstanding
issues would be discussed. He also wished to know whether it
would be the last session before Caracas and whether the
group that had met with the Chairman had made any sug-
gestions regarding the venue for the resumed tenth session.
15. The CHAIRMAN said that the question of the venue
would be taken up after the General Committee had reached a
decision on the future programme of work. It had been agreed
that the resumed tenth session should continue the programme
of work agreed upon at the end of the ninth session. He hoped
that it would be possible to complete that work at the resumed
tenth session; however, that would depend on the collective
effort of the members of the Conference.



63rd meeting — 16 April 1981 61

16. Mr. BRECKENRIDGE (Sri Lanka) said that his dele-
gation had accepted the proposal for a five-week resumed
tenth session as the best compromise solution in the light of the
programme of work and the aim of the Conference. It had
now been proposed that the resumed tenth session should be
scheduled for four weeks with the possibility of a one-week
extension, to be decided upon according to the rules of
procedure and with due regard for the circumstances pre-
vailing at the time. In fact, however, the Conference had
always taken into account the circumstances prevailing at any
particular time. His delegation would prefer it if, dispensing
with all the caveats, the resumed session could simply be
scheduled for five weeks and then finish earlier if that were
possible. Nevertheless, his delegation would accept the Chair-
man's formulation because it would bring a reluctant horse to
water. He wished to make it clear, however, that there must be
no derogation from the rules of procedure and that the pro-
gramme of work should be followed to the end.
17. Mr. TSHIKALA KAKWAKA (Zaire) said that his dele-
gation was willing to go along with the Chairman's proposal
but would like clarification as to whether the August session
would hold true negotiations on questions of substance or
would be merely a formal exchange of views. He did not object
to a reference to tradition and circumstances so long as it was
understood that the rules of procedure took precedence.
18. The CHAIRMAN said that at the resumed tenth session
every effort would be made to find acceptable solutions to all
outstanding problems. He would encourage consultations
aimed at finding new compromises and improving those
provisions of the draft convention that needed improvement in
order to enhance the prospects for consensus. It had not yet
been possible to find solutions to the four problems identified
at the end of the ninth session, nor had acceptable compro-
mises been reached on other parts of the draft convention. The
resumed session should redouble its efforts to achieve those
goals.
19. He appealed to the representative of Peru to agree to his
proposal on the future programme of work of the Conference,
in the light of the interpretation that had been given by the
representatives of Norway and Brazil.
20. Mr. ARIAS SCHREIBER (Peru) said that, in the light of
the explanation given by the Chairman and the comments of
other representatives, he would accept the Chairman's
proposal, on the understanding that it would be clearly stated
in the record that if there was no consensus on the extension of
the resumed tenth session, the rules of procedure would be
applied. The Chairman's reference to tradition and circum-
stances should be understood to be the expression of a desire, a
statement of the obvious, which did not affect the validity of
the rules of procedure. It should be clearly understood that no
delegation had any right to invoke the agreement and the
additional references to tradition and circumstances as justifi-
cation for any claim that a decision should be taken otherwise
than on the basis of the rules of procedure. In order to avoid
any misunderstanding and to make the meaning of the
proposal perfectly clear, he asked that, when submitting the
recommendations of the General Committee to the plenary
Conference, the Chairman should repeat the explanation he
had just given.
21. The CHAIRMAN thanked the representative of Peru for
his co-operation. Obviously, the rules of procedure had
primacy, and if it was necessary to resolve a question, they
would apply. As the representatives of Norway and Brazil had
said, the Conference had always succeeded through consul-
tations in avoiding any need for application of the rules of
procedure. It was his hope that that would be possible in the
future as well.
22. If there was no objection, he would take it that the
General Committee agreed to recommend to the plenary Con-
ference the future programme of work he had proposed.

// was so decided.

23. The CHAIRMAN pointed out that the General
Assembly had not given the Conference a mandate to hold a
resumed tenth session. If there was no objection, he would
take it that the General Committee authorized him to take the
matter up with the President of the General Assembly and to
request that the General Assembly should adopt a resolution
giving the Conference such a mandate.

It was so decided.

24. The CHAIRMAN informed members that in the consul-
tations he had held with the Chairmen of the five regional
groups, the Chairman of the Group of 77 and the representa-
tive of the United States, some had expressed the desire that
the intersessional meeting of the Drafting Committee and the
resumed tenth session of the Conference should be held at the
same venue. On the question of the venue, two regional
groups, namely, the group of Eastern European States and the
group of Western European and other States, had expressed a
clear preference for Geneva. The other three regional groups
had been flexible with regard to the venue. In the light of that
fact, it had been agreed that it would be logical to recommend
Geneva as the venue rather than New York. Before the
General Committee took a decision, however, he wished to ask
the representative of the Secretary-General to provide infor-
mation regarding the availability of services and facilities.
25. Mr. ZULETA (Special Representative of the Secretary-
General) said that the Secretariat had assumed that the
resumed tenth session would require the same level of services
as the current session, arrangements for which had been made
on the basis of the programme of work set forth in document
A/CONF.62/BUR.13/Rev.l. The Department of Conference
Services had studied the capabilities of New York and Geneva.
At New York, the calendar of conferences included meetings
of at least 13 subsidiary organs of the General Assembly or
committees set up by the General Assembly, all of which
would have to be changed if the Conference on the law of the
sea was to meet at New York in August. In addition, the docu-
mentation that normally had to be prepared for the regular
session of the General Assembly would occupy a substantial
part of the translation and reproduction services in August.
The General Assembly's documentation, of course, had
precedence over all other requirements unless the General
Assembly itself decided otherwise. In the opinion of the
Secretariat, holding the resumed session of the Conference on
the law of the sea at New York would preclude the holding of
any other meetings or activities of the General Assembly
during that period. In the light of those considerations, the
Secretariat had reached the conclusion that it would clearly be
preferable to hold the resumed session at Geneva, where more
services were available, the problem of preparing documenta-
tion would be easier to solve and more space was available for
meetings. The Conference on the law of the sea and the Gen-
eral Assembly would, of course, make their own decisions,
but the Secretariat felt that it had the duty to point out the
problems that would be encountered in trying to provide
adequate services at New York.
26. With regard to the Drafting Committee, the Secretariat
saw no major problems in holding the intersessional meeting at
Geneva; although there would be substantial reproduction of
documents, no special problem was foreseen in respect of
translation.
27. The CHAIRMAN said that if there was no objection, he
would take it that the General Committee agreed to recom-
mend to the plenary Conference that both the resumed tenth
session of the Conference and the intersessional meeting of the
Drafting Committee should be held at Geneva.

It was so decided.

The meeting rose at 11 a.m.


	Main Menu
	List of Documents
	How to use List of Documents

	Master File
	How to use Master File

	Other Materials
	I. Preface
	II. Document Symbols
	III. Full-text Search
	IV. Tables
	A. GA Resolutions
	B. Conference Sessions
	C. Documents by Session
	D. Contents by Volume
	E. Negotiating Texts
	F. Chronology - LOS



	Main: 


